
Adopted Minutes 
Spanish Fork City Planning Commission Meeting 

October 7, 2009 
 
 
Commission Members Present: Chairman Del Robins, Commissioners Shane 
Marshall, Michael Christianson, Rick Evans, Tyler Cope, and Dave Stroud. 
 
Staff Present: Dave Anderson, Community Development Director; Chris 
Thompson, Assistant Public Works Director; Marlo Smith, Engineering Secretary; 
and Kirk Nord, Assistant City Attorney. 
 
Citizens Present: Jordan Gross 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Robins called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PRELIMINARY ACTIVITIES 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Commissioner Stroud led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adoption of Minutes: September 2, 2009 
 
Commissioner Stroud made a motion to approve the minutes of September 2, 
2009, with the noted corrections.  Commissioner Christianson seconded and the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chairman Robins announced that starting November 4, 2009, the Spanish Fork 
City Planning Commission Meetings will start at 6:00 PM instead of the current 
time of 7:00 PM. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Proposed Amendment to the Transportation Element of the General 
Plan 
Applicant: Spanish Fork City 
General Plan: City-wide 
Zoning: City-wide 
Location: City-wide 
 
Commissioner Evans moved to open into public hearing.  Commissioner Stroud 
seconded and the motion passed all in favor at 7:05 PM. 

Planning Commission Adopted Minutes     Page 1 of 7   10-7-09 
 



 
Mr. Anderson explained the need for the proposed changes to the Master Plan 
Map and the consideration of changing cross section standards included in the 
Transportation Element of the General Plan.  He reviewed that a public hearing is 
required before action can be taken on changing the General Plan.   
 
Mr. Anderson asked Mr. Thompson to review the proposed changes. 
 
Mr. Thompson reviewed the changes to the map portion of the General Plan. 
 
Discussion took place regarding the change on the northeast end of town that 
would change the alignment of what was previously anticipated to be 
Expressway Lane. 
 
Chairman Robins asked if a bridge would be constructed over the railroad.  
 
Mr. Thompson said yes.  He explained that the bridge over the railroad would be 
a less expensive bridge to construct. 
 
Commissioner Cope asked if this would border the Whispering Willows 
subdivision. 
 
Mr. Thompson said it would. 
 
Mr. Christianson asked how this project would be funded. 
 
Mr. Thompson said the General Plan doesn’t describe in detail how projects are 
funded, but the railroad crossing is a long-range project for MAG (Mountainland 
Association of Governments) that could be funded with different options such as 
grants, transportation impact fees or connector agreements. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated that capital project plans are involved in the budget.  He 
discussed the transportation impact fee study that Horrocks Engineering had 
completed.  At this time the City hasn’t proposed that the City Council take 
action to implement a transportation impact fee. 
 
Discussion took place as to alternative options if a developer proposes a project 
prior to the railroad crossing being completed. 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the General Plan is a guiding document that is very 
detailed to help take the guess work out when the time comes to build roads.   
 
Discussion took place regarding the capital facilities plan and different ways to 
fund projects. 
 

Planning Commission Adopted Minutes     Page 2 of 7   10-7-09 
 



Chairman Robins asked if the new location for the road near State Road 51 had 
been discussed with UDOT.   
 
Commissioner Marshall said it was far enough away from other roads that he 
didn’t see it being a problem with UDOT. 
 
Commissioner Christianson asked about the proposed preliminary plat to the 
north. 
 
Mr. Anderson said the project was never approved by the City Council.   
 
Mr. Thompson discussed the 2nd change to the General Plan map section.  He 
said it was a typo that a section of collector road was left out between Del Monte 
and the south end of Cal Pac.  
 
Discussion took place regarding the signal light at Del Monte and Arrowhead 
Lane that should be completed next spring. 
 
Mr. Thompson discussed the 3rd change in regards to the area near 1700 East 
and Scenic Drive.   
 
Discussion took place regarding the ordinance that requires churches and schools 
to be built on collector roads.   
 
Mr. Thompson reviewed the Major Arterial Cross Section Standard Drawing. 
 
Commissioner Christianson asked if the wall proposed was masonry or precast.   
 
Mr. Thompson stated that precast is masonry so that it is one option. 
 
Commissioner Christianson asked about meandering sidewalks. 
 
Mr. Thompson stated that the drawing reflects a straight sidewalk due to utility 
locations in the planter area. 
 
Mr. Anderson said a meandering sidewalk is not as efficient. 
 
Discussion took place regarding road section size. 
 
Discussion took place on the shoulder section that could possibly be a future 
lane. 
 
Mr. Thompson reviewed the Minor Arterial Cross Section Standard Drawing. 
 

Planning Commission Adopted Minutes     Page 3 of 7   10-7-09 
 



Commissioner Marshall said he would like to see wording changes for optional 
lanes in the road pertaining to shoulder and future lanes. 
 
Discussion took place regarding changing the standard to reflect a 12’ lane and a 
10’ shoulder/future lane. 
 
Mr. Thompson reviewed the Collector Cross Section Standard Drawing. 
 
Commissioner Marshall asked about the proposed 8’ shoulder.  He feels that 
width is too wide. 
 
Mr. Thompson said an 8’ shoulder allows for right turn movements that won’t 
impede traffic. 
 
Commissioner Christianson feels the 6’ wide sidewalk is too wide. 
 
Discussion took place regarding sidewalk widths and what is comfortable for 
people to use sidewalks instead of the road. 
 
Mr. Thompson reviewed the Commercial Local Cross Section Standard Drawing. 
 
Discussion took place regarding there not being a trail option.   
 
Discussion took place regarding the wording about an approved preservation 
coat.  
 
Mr. Thompson stated that the wording is not being approved at this time, only 
the right of way widths. 
 
Mr. Thompson reviewed the Residential Local and Sub Local Cross Section 
Standard Drawing. 
 
Commissioner Christianson asked whether the median in a major arterial and a 
minor arterial was always concrete or landscaping. 
 
Mr. Thompson said a standard will be put into place on how to build the median.  
This standard will be part of the construction standards. 
 
Commissioner Cope asked what the current widths were for the road rights-of-
way. 
 
Chairman Robins asked for public comment. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 

Planning Commission Adopted Minutes     Page 4 of 7   10-7-09 
 



Discussion took place regarding the proposed changes to the road rights-of-way. 
 
Discussion took place regarding residential local roads being too wide.   
 
Commissioner Christianson asked what the police department would prefer. 
 
Mr. Anderson stated that the police department would prefer larger shoulders. 
 
Discussion took place regarding bicycle lanes. 
 
Discussion took place regarding the wording regarding the wall elimination as to 
be determined by the City Engineer or his/her designee. 
 
Commissioner Christianson moved to recommend approval of the proposed 
Amendment to the Transportation Element of the General Plan with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Minor arterial cross section reflects a 10-foot shoulder instead of 
the 12-foot shoulder. 

2. Major and Minor arterial cross sections to show the shoulder/future 
lane option instead of shoulder only. 

3. Anywhere a 6-foot sidewalk is shown it will be reduced to a 5-foot 
sidewalk and increase the planter width by 1 foot. 

4. Major arterial cross section shoulder lane width changed to an 11-
foot shoulder/future lane. 

5. Collector cross sections to show a 6-foot shoulder, a 13-foot 
median/lane and change right-of-way width to 85 feet. 

 
Commissioner Marshall seconded the motion.  A roll call vote was taken and the 
motion was passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Evans moved to close the public hearing.  Commissioner Stroud 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
OTHER DISCUSSION 
 
Chairman Robins reminded everyone that starting November 4, 2009, the 
Spanish Fork City Planning Commission Meetings will start at 6:00 p.m. instead 
of the current time of 7:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Evans discussed that the current chairman has been in his position 
for an excess of two years.  After some discussion the conclusion is to give 
Chairman Robins a break and elect a new chairman.  This change is not by any 

Planning Commission Adopted Minutes     Page 5 of 7   10-7-09 
 



Planning Commission Adopted Minutes     Page 6 of 7   10-7-09 
 

means reflecting Chairman Robin’s job performance as chairman, just to give him 
a break.   
 
Commissioner Evans moved to appoint Commissioner Christianson as 
Chairman and Commissioner Marshall as Vice-Chairman.  Commissioner Robins 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Robins made a motion to adjourn.  Commission Marshall 
seconded and the motion passed all in favor at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Adopted: 

       
                                                 
____________________________________ 

      Marlo Smith, Engineering Secretary 
  


